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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Regd. Office : S-191/C, 3° Floor 
Manak Complex, School Block 

Shakarpur, Delhi-110092 

Tel : +91-1145578607, 8130300046 

To. Date: 13/08/2025 
Department of Corporate Services-Listing 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers. 

Dalal Street, 
Mumbai-400001 

Serip Code: 539174 

Sub: Notice of 43" Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the Financial Year 
2024-25 

Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

This is to inform you that 43" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Helpage Finlease Limited 
isscheduled o be held on Thursday, 4™ September, 2025 at 04:00 P.M. (IST) through Video 
Conlerencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM). in accordance with the relevant 
circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia. 

Interms of the requirement of Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations. 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Notice of the 43 Annual 
General Meeting and Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. which is 
being sent through electronic mode to the Members. 

The Integrated Annual Report containing the Notice of Annual General Meeting is also 
uploaded on the Company’s website at https:/www.helpagefinlease.com/annual-reports/ 

Further, in accordance with the Regulation 36 (1) (b) of the SEBI I isting Regulations. a letter - 
containing the web-link and QR Code for accessing the notice of 43 AGM and Annual Report 
for 'Y2025 is being sent to all those Members who have not registered their email 1Ds. 

You are requested 1o take the above information on your records. 

Thanking You, 

Yours Faithfully = 
For Helpage Finlease Limited 

Darshna Agarwal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M.No. A73854 

Encl: as above 

CIN : L51909DL1982PLC014434 | GSTIN : 07AABCH1021L1ZY 

Email Id : info@helpagefinlease.com | Website : www.helpagefinlease.com

DARSHNA 
AGARWAL

Digitally signed by 
DARSHNA AGARWAL 
Date: 2025.08.13 
15:11:22 +05'30'
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

CIN: L51909DL1982PLC014434 

Regd. office: S-191/c, 3rd Floor Manak Complex, School Block, Shakarpur, 

Delhi-110092, Phone No.+91-11-4557-8607 

Email Id: info@helpagefinlease.com Website:www.helpagefinlease.com 

 

 

NOTICE OF 43rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Helpage 

Finlease Limited will be held on Thursday, 04th Day of September, 2025 at 4:00 P.M. (IST) through 

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

  

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Ms. Ananyaa Pandey (DIN: 06966851), who retires by rotation in 

terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible offer herself for re-

appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor 

 

To consider and if thought fit, pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors 

of the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the 

appointment of CS Divya Rani, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No: 26426 Peer Review 

Certificate No: 6693/2025) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five (5) years, 

commencing on April 01, 2025, until March 31, 2030, to conduct a Secretarial Audit of the 

Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit Report, on such remuneration as set out in the 

Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice of the AGM. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 

authorized to fix the annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses payable to 

mailto:info@helpagefinlease.com
http://www.helpagefinlease.com/
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them during their tenure as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit 

Committee in consultation with the said Secretarial Auditors. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary be and are 

hereby jointly/ severally authorized to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things 

as may be considered necessary, proper, and expedient to give effect to this Resolution”. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By the order of the Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                Sd/- 

        Darshna Agarwal 

Date:  08th August, 2025                                             Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi                                                                                                                      M. No.: A73854 

Regd office: S-191/c, 3rd floor Manak Complex, School 

 Block, Shakarpur, East Delhi, India, 110092                                                                                                                      

 

         

Notes: 

 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’), vide its General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 

19, 2024 read with General Circulars No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 

2020, No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 19/2021 dated 

December 08, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, No. 10 /2022 dated December 28, 2022 

and No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-

PoD2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024 (‘SEBI Circular’), permitted the holding of the AGM 

through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended, (‘the Listing Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the 

Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Further, the Attendance Slip does not form part of the 

Notice and the route map is also not annexed to the Notice. 

 

2. The deemed venue for the 43rd AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.  

 

3. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) relating 

to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is annexed hereto. 

The Board of Directors have considered and decide to include the Item No. 3 given above as Special 

Business in the Annual General Meeting. 
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4. Pursuant to the provisions of the act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to 

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the 

Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars through VC/OAVM, the 

requirement of physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of 

the MCA Circulars and the SEBI circulars, the facility for appointment of Proxies by the members 

will not be available for this AGM and Hence the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of 

AGM are not annexed to this notice. 
 

 

5. The Participation of Members through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 

the quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

6. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting 

are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution /authorization letter to the Company by 

email to info@helpagefinlease.comor Beetal Financial Computer Services Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent at beetalrta@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 

 

7. The register of directors and key managerial personnel (KMP) and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the register of contracts or arrangements in which the directors are 

interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by 

the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for 

electronic inspection without any fee from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of 

AGM, i.e. September 4, 2025.Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 

info@helpagefinlease.com. 

  

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members 

on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 

account of first come first served basis. 

 

9. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2") 

of the person who retire by rotation and eligible for re- appointment as Director under Item No. 2 of 

the Notice is also attached. The Company has received relevant disclosures/consent from the 

Director seeking re-appointment. 

 

10. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, Regulation 44 of the 

LODR Regulations and in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020, the Company has provided a facility to its members to exercise their votes 

electronically through the electronic voting (e-voting) facility provided by the National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL). The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting 

system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. Members who 

file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinlease.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/beetalrta@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinlease.com
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have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not 

been titled to cast their votes again. The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in 

dematerialized mode, physical mode and for members who have not registered their email addresses 

is provided in the ‘Instructions for e-voting’ section which forms part of this Notice.  

 

11. The Company has appointed Ms. Divya Rani, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as the 

Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e- voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Results 

declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.helpagefinlease.com and on the website of NSDL within two (2) working days of passing of 

the resolutions at the AGM of the Company. 

 
 

12. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form except in case of request received for transmission or 

transposition of securities. As per SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 

dated July 02, 2025 Special Window for Re-lodgement of Transfer Requests of Physical Shares is 

opened, to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of Doing Investment are 

requested to convert their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact their Depository 

Participant with whom they are maintaining their demat account the Company or Company’s 

Registrars and Transfer Agents (Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited) for assistance in 

this regard. 

 

13. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is being sent to all the members 

whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for 

communication purposes. For members who have not registered their e-mail address, a letter 

containing the web link and path of Annual report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 are 

being sent in the permitted mode. In case any member is desirous of obtaining hardcopy of Notice of 

the 43rd  AGM of the Company and the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25, may send 

request to the Company’s e-mail address at info@helpagefinlease.com mentioning Folio No./DP ID 

and Client ID. 

 

14. Members holding share in dematerialized forms are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to 

their Bank details, Nominations, power of attorney, change of address, email address and other 

relevant details, if any to their respective Depository Participants, Members holding shares in 

physical form are requested to intimate such changes either to the Company or Share Transfer Agent.    

 

15. Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed on Book 

Closure Dates i.e., from Friday, August 29, 2025 to Thursday, September 4, 2025 (both days 

inclusive). 

 

16. The members may cast their votes through electronic voting system (remote e-voting). The remote e-

voting period will commence on Monday, September 1, 2025 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on Wednesday, 

September 3, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). on. In addition, the facility for e-voting shall also be made 

available during the AGM. Members participating in the AGM through Video Conference/ Other 

Audio-Visual Means who have not cast their vote by remote e- voting shall be eligible to cast their 

vote through e-voting during the AGM. Members who have voted through remote e-voting shall be 

eligible to participate in the AGM; however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeting.  

http://www.helpagefinlease.com/
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinlease.com
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17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with 

whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 

submit their PAN details to the Company at Company at info@helpagfinlease.com or the Beetal 

Financial Computer Services Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at beetalrta@gmail.com. 

 

18. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular’s the Notice calling the 43rd AGM has 

been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.helpagefinlease.com. The Notice can also be 

accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. Notice 

is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e., 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the 

Company’s email id at info@helpagfinlease.com. 

 

19. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 

address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 

Company electronically. 

 

20. In case of any queries regarding the Annual Report, the Members may write to 

info@helpagefinlease.com to receive an email response. 

 

21. Voting through electronic means 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 

Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs the Company is providing facility of remote 

e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 43rd AGM. For this 

purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 

facility of casting votes by a member using remote e- voting system as well as venue voting on 

the date of the 43rd AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

    The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the 

AGM through but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

 43rd AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars and SEBI circulars. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

file:///D:/Shared/HELPAGE%20FINLEASE%20LIMITED/2024-2025/Annual%20General%20Meeting/Final/info@helpagfinlease.com
mailto:beetalrta@gmail.com.
http://www.bseindia.com/
file:///D:/Shared/HELPAGE%20FINLEASE%20LIMITED/2024-2025/Annual%20General%20Meeting/Final/www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:id%20at%20info@helpagfinlease.com
file:///D:/Shared/HELPAGE%20FINLEASE%20LIMITED/2024-2025/Annual%20General%20Meeting/Final/info@helpagefinlease.com
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The Instructions for Members for remote e-voting and joining General Meeting are as under: - 

 

The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, September 1, 2025 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on 

Wednesday, September 3, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/ 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Thursday, August 28, 2025 may cast their 

vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Thursday, August 28, 2025. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

 

STEP 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

 

   In terms of SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 

Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.comeither on a Personal Computer or 

on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 

is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 

Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 

e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting.  

 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 

below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be 

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 

visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 

and New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing  

Myeasi username and password.  

 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 

to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-

Voting service provider i.e., NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your 

vote. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-

voting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able 

to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting &amp; voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is 

also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/www.cdslindia.com
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Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 

providers’ website directly. 

 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 

option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting 

is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 

& voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use “Forget 

User ID” and “Forget Password” option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com or call at toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000  

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 

1800 22 55 33 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in 

physical mode 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 

after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., Cast your 

vote electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e., 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 

is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 

need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e., a .pdf file. Open 

the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 

your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

 

STEP 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, 

you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/www.evoting.nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/evoting@nsdl.co.in
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested 

specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 

Scrutinizer by e-mail to csdivyasingh.25@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com.  

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 

Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 

/Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request 

to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com. 

 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to info@helpagefinelase.com. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

info@helpagefinelase.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, 

you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e., Login method for e-

Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/csdivyasingh.25@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/www.evoting.nsdl.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/www.evoting.nsdl.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/evoting@nsdl.co.in
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinelase.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinelase.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/evoting@nsdl.co.in
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The Instructions for members for e-Voting on the Day of the AGM are as under:  

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e- Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

Voting on the day of the GM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 

e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL 

e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join 

meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 

Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login 

where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the 

User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the 

same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute 

rush.  

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 

any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

info@helpagefinelase.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

6. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register 

themselves as a speaker in advance by sending their request from their registered email address 

mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio Number, PAN, Mobile Number at 

info@helpagefinelase.com. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker till 1st 

September, 2024 (5.00 P.M. IST) will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during 

file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinelase.com
file:///C:/Users/Globaljurix_0002/Documents/info@helpagefinelase.com
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the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 

availability of time for the AGM.  

 

 

By the order of the Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

 

 

 

 

         Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                     Darshna Agarwal 

Date: 08th August, 2025                                                Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi                                                                                                                         M. No.: A73854 

Regd. Office: S-191/c, 3rd floor Manak Complex, School  

Block, Shakarpur, East Delhi, India, 110092                                                                                                                       
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 

 

 

Item No. 3: 

 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 2024, has amended 

Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations. As per the said amendment to Regulation 24A of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, which came into effect from 01 April 2025, the appointment of Secretarial Auditor 

shall be approved by the Members at the AGM of the Company and the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor 

in case of an individual Company Secretary in Practice, should be for a maximum of one (1) term of five 

(5) consecutive years or in case of a Firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, for a maximum of two (2) 

terms of five (5) consecutive years. However, any association of the individual or the firm as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the listed entity before 31st March 2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of 

calculating the tenure under Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

Pursuant to the above requirement, the Board at its meeting held on 26th May 2025, considering the 

experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to the 

Members of the Company the appointment of “CS Divya Rani”, Practicing Company Secretary (COP 

No: 26426 Peer Review Certificate No: 6693/2025)  as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period 

of five consecutive financial years, i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30 in terms of 

Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD–PoD–

2/CIR/P/ 2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) read with provisions of Section 204 of 

the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014. The appointment is subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM. 

 

After evaluating all proposals and considering various factors such as independence, industry experience, 

technical skills, geographical presence, audit team, audit quality reports, etc., CS Divya Rani has been 

recommended to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company.  

 

There is no material change in the terms of the remuneration paid to the Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company. The remuneration will be mutually decided between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial 

Auditor.  

 

The Company has received written consent from CS Divya Rani and a certificate that she satisfies the 

qualification criteria provided under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 

dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI Listing Regulations, SEBI 

Circular and other applicable circulars, if any, in this regard.  

 

The individual has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would 

be within the limits specified under the Act. She has further confirmed that she is eligible for the 

proposed appointment as Secretarial Auditor of the Company and have not incurred any of the 
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disqualifications as specified vide the said SEBI Circular. While recommending CS Divya Rani’s for 

appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee evaluated various factors, including her capability to 

handle a diverse and complex business environment, its existing experience in the Company’s business 

segments, its industry standing, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. CS Divya Rani was 

found to be well-equipped to manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial 

Audit of the Company. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 

Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is sought for appointment of CS Divya Rani, as the Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 years commencing from 1st April 2025. 

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for 

approval by the Members.  

 

 

                                                                                   By the order of the Board 

                                                                                For Helpage Finlease Limited 

 

                     Sd/-               

Date: 08th August, 2025   Darshna Agarwal 

Place: Delhi  Company Secretary 

Regd. Office:  

S-191/c, 3rd floor Manak Complex, School  

Block Shakarpur, East Delhi India, 110092 

M.No.: A73854 
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Details of Director Seeking Appointment / Re-Appointment at the 43rd Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting as prescribed by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India) 

 
Name of the Director and Director 

Identification Number 

Ms. Ananyaa Pandey (DIN: 06966851) 

Date of Birth and Age   30-01-1989 (36 years) 

Date of first appointment on the Board   30-09-2014 

Designation   Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director 

Qualification   Master of Business Administration (MBA) 

Nature of Expertise in Specific Functional 
Areas 

  Human Resources 

Brief Profile, experience in specific 
functional area 

  More than 13 years 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re-

appointment 

Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director, who is 

liable to retire by rotation. 

Details of remuneration sought to be paid Nil 

Name of Listed Entities from which the 

person has resigned in past three years.  

None 

List of Directorships held in other Listed 

Companies 

  Nil 

Chairperson/Member of the Committees of 

the Boards of other Listed Companies  

Nil 

No. of meetings of the Board attended 

during the year 

  Eight 
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Shareholding in Helpage Finlease Limited 

including shareholding as a beneficial 

owner 

  None 

Relationship with another director, 

Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel of the company 

None 

 

 

 

By the order of the Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

 

 

 

 

 

        

                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                 

                                                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Sd/- 

Date: 08th August, 2025      Darshna Agarwal 

Place: Delhi    Company Secretary 

Regd. Office: S-191/c, 3rd floor Manak Complex, 

School Block Shakarpur, East Delhi India,  

110092 

M. No.: A73854 

   



 

21 | P a g e  
 

 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

 

To, 

The Members 

Helpage Finlease Limited 

S-191/c, 3rd floor Manak Complex, School Block, Shakarpur, 

East Delhi, India, 110092 

 

 

Your director’s have pleasure in presenting the 43rd Directors Report on the business and operations of the 

Company along with the Audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

1. Financial Highlights 
 

Your Company's performance for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 is summarized below: 

 (In Rs.) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 8,64,61,491 45,513,756 

Other Income - 14,250 

Total Income                         8,64,61,491 45,528,006 

Less: Total Expenses                         64,256,409 32,431,898 

Net Profit/(Loss) before 

Tax & Depreciation (PBDT) 

22,205,082 13,096,108 

Less: Depreciation 15,16,471 1,116,032 

Net Profit/(Loss) after 

Depreciation before Tax 

(PBT) 

 
2,06,88,611 

 

11,980,076 

Less: Current Tax 53,78,950 3,119,567 

Deferred Tax 5,55,773 126,035 

Profit after Tax                     1,47,53,888 8,734,474 

 

The Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 have 

been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as notified by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs and as amended from time to time. 

               

2. Dividend 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company, after considering the relevant circumstances has decided that it 

would be prudent, not to recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

3. Public Deposits 

 

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the period under review and it continues to be a 
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non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company in conformity with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank 

of India and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

4. State of Company’s Affairs and Future Outlooks 

 

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

During the year, the Company has performed modestly despite of challenging economic conditions and 

other related factors. The Directors are relentlessly striving for betterment of the business and growth of the 

Company. They are optimistic about the future and expect the business to perform well in the forthcoming 

year. 
 

 

5. Review of Operations 

 

During the financial year under review, your Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 8,64,61,491/- (Eight 

Crore Sixty-Four Lakh Sixty-One Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-One Only) during the year as against Rs. 

4,55,13,756/- (Four Crore Fifty-five Lakh Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty-Six Only) in the 

previous year. The Company has earned profit after tax of Rs. 1,47,53,888/- Rupees One Crore Forty-Seven 

Lakhs Fifty-Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-Eight as against Rs. 87,34,474/- Rupees Eighty-Seven 

Lakhs Thiry Four Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-Four in the previous financial year. 

 

6. Transfer to General Reserve 

 

An amount of Rs. 30,61,500/- Rupees Thirty Lakhs Sixty-One Thousand Five Hundred has been 

transferred to Special Reserve as per the requirement under   Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. The company has not transferred any amount to the general reserves. 

 

7. Subsidiaries, Joint Venture or Associate Companies 

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company; hence provisions of 

section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to preparation of consolidated financial statements 

are not applicable. 

 

8. Share Capital 

 

a) Authorized Share Capital: 

 

During the period under review, there is no change in the authorized share capital of the Company. The 

Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 11,00,00,000/-(Rupees Eleven Crore only) divided into 

1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten lakh only) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

 

b) Issue, Subscribed and paid-up capital: 
 

During the period under review, there is no change in the paid-up share capital of the Company. The paid-

up share capital of the Company is Rs. 9,94,75,000/- (Rupees Nine Crore Ninety-Four Lakh Seventy-Five 

Thousand only) divided into 99,47,500 (Ninety-Nine lakh Forty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred only) 

equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 
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c) Buy back of securities 

 

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the period under review. 

 

d) Bonus Shares 

 

No bonus shares were issued during the period under review. 

 

e) Issue of Equity Shares under ESOP 

 

No Equity shares under ESOP were issued during the period under review. 

 

9. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

 

A. Directors  

 

The Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time. 

 

The Company has a professional Board with Executive Directors & Non-Executive Directors who bring 

the right mix of knowledge, skills, and expertise and help the Company in implementing the best 

Corporate Governance practices. 

 

The Board of Directors at present comprises of four (4) Directors out of which one is executive director 

(promoter group), one is non-executive and non-independent and other two (2) Directors are Independent 

Directors. The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with the Company’s best interests. It is 

committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company’s value creation. The Board critically 

evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies and their effectiveness. 

 

Composition of Board as on 31st March, 2025 as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Category 

Mr. Sidharth Goyal Managing Director & Chief 

Financial Officer 

Promoter Executive 

Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan Independent Director Non-Executive Independent 

Ms. Ananyaa Pandey Women Director Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Mr. Sushil Kumar Independent Director Non-Executive Independent 

 
 

i. Retirement of Director by Rotation 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Ananyaa Pandey (DIN: 

06966851) retires by rotation at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered herself 

for re-appointment.  
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Brief details and other details as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and 

Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India for re appointment of Ms. 

Ananyaa Pandey, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director is given in the notice convening the ensuing 

AGM, which forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

ii. Statement on declaration given by Independent Directors 

 

The Board of the Company consists of two Independent Directors and all the Independent Directors have 

given the declaration that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 

Independent Directors of the Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience 

of all Independent Directors on the Board. The Independent Directors (IDs) have also confirmed that they 

complied the with company’s code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. Further 

the IDs get themselves registered in the data bank mentioned with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, 

Manesar (IICA) from time to time and under, if required, online proficiency self-assessment test conducted 

by the IICA. 

 

In term of requirements of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 25(3) of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 12th December 

2024 without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of Management, inter alia, to 

discuss the following: 

 

I. review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 

II. review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive 

directors and non-executive directors; 

III.  assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

 

iii. Performance evaluation at Board 

 

In line with the provisions of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder read 

with the relevant provisions of the SEBI Listing regulations, 2015, the Board of directors has carried out 

an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, individual directors and the Committees of the 

Board. The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out explained hereunder: 

 

The evaluations are based on questionnaire prepared which assessed the performance of the Board on 

select parameters related to roles, responsibilities and obligations of the Board and functioning of the 

Committees including assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 

its duties.  

 

The evaluation criteria for the Directors were based on their participation, contribution and offering 

guidance to and understanding of the areas which are relevant to them in their capacity as members of the 
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Board. 

 

iv. Policies on appointment of Directors and Remuneration 

 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy 

for selection and appointment of Directors, KMP, Senior Management and their remuneration. 

 

The objective and broad framework of the Remuneration Policy is to consider and determine the 

remuneration, based on the fundamental principles of payment for performance, for potential, and for 

growth. The Remuneration Policy reflects on certain guiding principles of the Company such as aligning 

remuneration with the long-term interests of the Company and performance of the personnel, promoting a 

culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage to corporate and individual performance, and emphasizing on 

professional competence and market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent. It also ensures the 

effective recognition of performance and encourages a focus on achieving superior operational results. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel, which is then approved by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of 

shareholders, wherever necessary. The level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and 

sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of the 

Company required running the Company successfully. 

 

v. Meetings of the Board 

 

During the Financial year 2024-25, the Board met Eight (8) times. The meetings were held as on 

16/05/2024, 30/05/2024, 17/06/2024, 26/06/2024, 12/08/2024, 11/11/2024, 12/02/2025 and 03/03/2025, 

the necessary quorum was present through the meetings. The maximum interval between any two 

meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

 

Following is the attendance of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings held during the period under 

review: 

 

S. No  Date of Meeting Total No of Directors as on date of 
meeting  

 

                     Attendance  
 

No. of Directors 
attended  

 

  % of 
Attendance  

 
1. 16/05/2024 4 2 50% 

2. 30/05/2024 4 4 100% 

3. 17/06/2024 4 4 100% 

4. 26/06/2024 4 4 100% 

5. 12/08/2024 4 4 100% 

  6. 11/11/2024 4 4 100% 

7. 12/02/2025 4 3 75% 

8. 03/03/2025 4 3 75% 
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The 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 23rd July, 2024. 

 

B. Key Managerial Personnel 

 

The Details of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are mentioned below: 

 

 Mr. Sidharth Goyal, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer. 

 

 Ms. Darshna Agarwal (M. No: A73854) Company Secretary and Compliance Officer  

 

During the year Mr. Hemant Chauhan (M. No: A61772) was appointed as Company Secretary 

and Compliance officer of the Company with effect from 16th May, 2024, however he ceased tit 

be Company Secretary with effect from 14th June, 2024. 

 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Ms. Darshna 

Agarwal (M. No: A73854) a qualified Company Secretary was appointed by the Board of 

Directors as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer and KMP of the Company w.e.f. 17th 

June, 2024. 

 

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Board of Directors of the Company confirm that: 

 

 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable 

accounting standard have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 

 they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgement and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of 

the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period.  

 

 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and irregularities. 

 

   they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

  they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
11. Committees of the Board 

 

The Board has constituted the following Committees of the Board with specific terms of reference as per 
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the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013: 

 

A. Audit Committee 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

C. Risk Management Committee 

D. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference for 

members of various committees. 

 

A. Audit Committee  

 

The Board has set up qualified and Independent Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of 

Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. All 

members of the Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial management 

expertise. 

 

The Audit Committee comprises of the following directors as its members as on 31st March,2025: 

 

S.No. Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Sushil Kumar Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

2. Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

3. Ms. Ananyaa Pandey Member Non-Executive Director 

 

During the period under review, the Audit Committee met Four (4) times on 30/05/2024, 12/08/2024, 

11/11/2024 and 12/02/2025.  

 

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board during the year under 

review.  

 

Following is the detail of the attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at its Meeting 

held during the year under review:  

 

S. No Date of Meeting Total No of Members on 
date of meeting  
 

Attendance 

Numbers of 

Members 

attended 

% of Attendance 

 

1. 30/05/2024 3 3 100 

2. 12/08/2024 3 3 100 

3. 11/11/2024 3 3 100 

4. 12/02/2025 3 2 66.67 
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Terms of reference 

 

The Audit Committee has been constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulation. The Audit Committee reviews the financial 

accounting policies, adequacy of internal control systems and interacts with the statutory auditors. Besides, 

the Committee reviews the observations of the management and internal/ external auditors, interim and 

annual financial results, Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of 

operations, and related party transactions. The other roles of Audit Committee, inter- alia includes the 

following: 

  

i. the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

company; 

 

ii. review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

 

iii. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 

 

iv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

 

v. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 

vi. valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

 

vii. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 

viii. monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 

 

The Terms of reference of the Committee can be accessed at 

https://www.helpagefinlease.com/disclosure/ 

 
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulation.  

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the three non-executive directors as its 

members as on 31st March, 2025: 

 

S.No. Name of Director     Designation Category 

1 Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2 Mr. Sushil Kumar Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

3 Ms. Ananyaa Pandey Member Non-Executive Director 

 

https://www.helpagefinlease.com/disclosure/
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The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the committee. 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is uploaded on the website of the Company i.e., at  

https://www.helpagefinlease.com/disclosure/ 
 

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met Two (2) time on 

15/05/2024 and 15/06/2024. The details of attendance in committee meeting are as follows: 

 

 

S. No Date of 

Meeting 

Total No of Members on 
date of meeting  
 

Attendance 

Numbers of 

Members 

attended 

% of Attendance 

 

1. 15/05/2024 3 3 100 

2.  15/06/2024 3 3 100 

 
C. Risk Management Committee 

 

The Board has constituted the Risk Management Committee as per the requirements of the Companies 

Act, 2013 along with applicable Rules and requirements of the Listing Regulations. 

 

The Risk Management Committee lays down procedures: 

 

a. To inform Board members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures. 

 

b. Framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan for the company. 

 

c. Any other matter that may be entrusted to the Committee by the Board. 

 

The frequency, agenda, duration, etc., for meetings of Risk Management Committee shall be as set by the 

Chairman of the Committee. The Company has established effective risk assessment and minimization 

procedures, which are reviewed by the board periodically. The procedures comprise of an in-house 

exercise on Risk Management, carried out periodically by the Company, including the functioning of a 

structure to identify and mitigate various risks faced by the Company from time to time. 

 

The Risk Management Committee comprises of the following directors as its members as on 31st March, 

2025: 

 

S.No. Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Sushil Kumar  Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2. Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

https://www.helpagefinlease.com/disclosure/
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3. Mr. Sidharth Goyal Member Executive Director 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the committee. 

 

Your company has adopted a Risk Management Process in which a structure for risk identification and 

analysis are in place for every department further within which origin of the risk is identify and updating 

the same in risk registers if required. 

 

These reports are consolidated and presented by the Chairman, to the Board of the Company. Your 

Company adopts the methods and process to assess and analyze risk holistically, identifies all compliance 

requirements and proactively develops measures to comply with such requirements. Your Company by 

identifying and proactively addressing risks and opportunities, protects and creates value for stakeholders, 

including owners, employees, customers, regulators, and society overall.  

 

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met Two (2) time on 03/05/2024 and 

25/10/2024. The details of attendance in committee meeting are as follows: 

 

S. No Date of 

Meeting 

Total No of Members on 
date of meeting  
 

Attendance 

Numbers of 

Members 

attended 

% of Attendance 

 

1. 03/05/2024 3 3 100 

2.  25/10/2024 3 3 100 

 
D. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

The Board has constituted the Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee as per the provision of section 

178 of Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to specifically look into the redressal of Shareholders complaints. 

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of the following directors as its members as on 31st 

March, 2025: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of Director Designation Category 

1. Mr. Sushil Kumar  Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

2. Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

3. Mr. Sidharth Goyal Member Executive Director 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the committee. 

 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met one time on 05/12/2024. The 

details of attendance in committee meeting are as follows: 
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S. No Date of 

Meeting 

Total No of Members on 
date of meeting  
 

Attendance 

Numbers of 

Members 

attended 

% of Attendance 

 

1. 05/12/2024 3 3 100 

 

There were no investor’s complaints pending as on 31st March, 2025. 

 

12. Meeting of Independent Directors 

 

The separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 12th December 2024 inter alia, reviewed 

the performance of the Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and Manager of the Company. The 

Independent Directors in the said meeting also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between the Company Management and the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its 

duties. 

 

13. Accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements 

 

The guidelines/ accounting standards lay down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 

and prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed in preparation of the 

financial statements of the Company in all material respects. 

 

14. Risk Management 

 

Your Company has laid down procedure to inform Board Members about the risk assessment and 

minimization procedures. These procedures are being periodically reviewed to ensure that management 

controls risk through the means of properly defined framework of the Company. 

 

15. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees given and Investments made u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 by the Company 

 

The particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments made by the Company covered under the provisions 

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Power) Rules, 

2014 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

16. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

 

During the financial year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with rules framed thereunder, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

17. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 



 

32 | P a g e  
 

 

The Company has adopted a policy on Whistle Blower (Vigil Mechanism) with a view to provide a 

mechanism for the directors and employees of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of 

this policy are in line with the provisions of the Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

18. Compliance Officer 

 

Ms. Darshna Agarwal, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and can be 

contacted at E-mail id at info@helpagefinlease.com. Complaints or queries relating to the Shares can be 

forwarded to M/s Beetal Financial Computer Services Private Limited, Company’s Registrar and Transfer 

Agents at beetalrta@gmail.com. 

 

19. Auditors 

 

i. Statutory Auditors 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and 

Auditors), Rules, 2014, M/s. R. C. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 

003175N) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the shareholders at 40thAnnual 

General Meeting held on 27th June, 2022 for the period of five (5) years to hold office from the conclusion 

of 40thAnnual General Meeting until the conclusion of 45thAnnual General Meeting at such remuneration 

as may be mutually agreed. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as 

Auditors of the Company. 

 

The notes on accounts referred to in the auditors’ report are self-explanatory and therefore don’t call for any 

further comments by the Board of Directors. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2025.  
 

 

ii. Secretarial Auditor 

 

In pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the 

Company, have appointed CS Divya Rani, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 

26426), as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct an audit of the secretarial records for the financial year 2024-

25, based on consent received from them. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith marked as “Annexure-I” to this Report. 

 

Further, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors 

of the Company, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of CS Divya Rani, 

Practicing Company Secretary (COP No: 26426 Peer Review Certificate No: 6693/2025) as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five (5) years, commencing on April 01, 2025, until 

March 31, 2030, to conduct a Secretarial Audit of the Company and to furnish the Secretarial Audit 

Report. 

 

mailto:info@helpagefinlease.com.
mailto:at%20beetalrta@gmail.com
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There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Ms. Divya Rani, Practicing Company 

Secretary in their report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

iii. Internal Auditor 

 

In terms of Section 138 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s J P K R & COMPANY, Chartered 

Accountants (FRN: 330682E) was appointed as the Internal Auditor of the company for the Financial Year 

2024-25, who is responsible for performance of duties as internal auditor of the company and their report 

will be reviewed by the audit committee from time to time. 

 
 

20. Extract of the Annual Return 

 

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act and Rules framed thereunder, the extract 

of the Annual Return is available on website of the Company i.e.www.helpagefinlease.com. 

 
 

21. Reporting of frauds 
 

During the year under review, there have been no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors/ 
Secretarial Auditors/ Internal Auditors of the Company under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the 
Act. 
 

22. Corporate Governance 

 

In Pursuant to Regulation 15(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015, the provisions of Corporate Governance shall not apply, in respect of the listed 

entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crores and net worth not exceeding 

Rs. 25 Crores, as on the last day of the previous financial year. 

 

Since the paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 9,94,75,000 /- and net worth of the Company 

is Rs. 15,32,79,855/- as at 31st March, 2024. Hence, Regulation 17 to 27 of the Corporate Governance 

is not applicable to the Company and the report on Corporate Governance is not provided in this 43rd 

annual report. 

 

Further, it is hereby informed that the Company is not required to file Annual Compliance Report under 

Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015due 

to the exemption claimed under Regulation 15(2) and pursuant to circular “LIST/COMP/12/2019-

20” dated 14.05.2019 issued by the BSE. 
 

 

23. Particulars of Employees 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Particulars of Employees) 

Rules, 1975, the ratio of remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary of the 

file:///D:/Shared/HELPAGE%20FINLEASE%20LIMITED/2024-2025/Annual%20General%20Meeting/Final/www.helpagefinlease.com
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Company for the Financial year 2024-2025 is enclosed as “Annexure-II”. 

 

24. Related Party Transaction 

 

During the financial year, all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with its related 

parties were in ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis and thus the provisions of Section 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under are not attracted. 

 

In this regard, the materially significant related party transactions, if any made by the Company with 

Related Parties are in compliance with Section 188 (1) and Section 134 (3)(h) read with Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Further, the disclosure in form AOC-2 as provided in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 

enclosed as “Annexure-III”. 
 

 

25. Particulars regarding the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

The Company has not engaged in any manufacturing activity and thus its operations are not energy 

intensive. However, adequate measures are always taken to ensure optimum utilization and maximum 

possible saving of energy. 

 

There were no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year 2024-25. 

 

26. Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under the listing regulations forms part of this 

Annual Report is annexed as “Annexure IV”. 

 

27. Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals 

 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

 

28. Disclosure about the applicability of Cost Audit specified by the central government under 

section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The provision of the section 148 of the Companies’ act, 2013 read with Rules 14 of the Companies (Audit 

& Auditors) rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company. 

 

29. Code of Conduct and Ethics 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Directors and 

Senior Executives of the Company. The object of the Code is to conduct the Company’s business 

ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and honesty. The Code sets out a 

broad policy for one’s conduct in dealing with the Company, fellow Directors and with the environment 
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in which the Company operates. 

 

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 

the year ended 31st March 2025. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director forms a 

part of this Annual Report. 

 

30. Statement pursuant to Listing agreements 

 

The Company's securities are listed with BSE Limited The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-2025 has 

been paid by the Company in time and there were no arrears reported for the year under review. 

 

31. RBI Compliances 

 

The Company has complied with all the applicable regulations of RBI as on 31st March, 2025.The 

Company has duly filed all returns in accordance with Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial 

Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

 

32. Compliance with the Secretarial Standards 

 

The Company has complied with all the Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings and General Meetings 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

33. Internal Financial Control Systems and Their Adequacy 

 

The Company possesses adequate internal controls to ensure that all assets are protected against loss from 

unauthorized use or disposition and that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 

An efficient Internal Audit department monitors adherence to these controls. 

 

The Internal Auditor monitor and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the 

Company, its compliance with the operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the 

Company. 

 

Based on the report of Internal Auditor, the process owners undertake the corrective actions in their 

respective areas and hereby strengthen the control. Significant audit observation and corrective actions 

thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

34. Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016  

 

There were no proceedings, either filed by the Company or against the Company, pending under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National Company Law Tribunal or 

other Courts as at 31st March, 2025. 

 

35. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement 

and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the 

reasons thereof 
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The Company has neither availed any loan from banks or financial institution and hence there is no 

application being ever made for One Time Settlement (OTS) with any banks or financial institution.  

 

36. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

And Redressal) Act, 2013:  

 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy on 

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment in line with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’) 

and the Rules there under. There were no complaints/cases of sexual harassment reported during the 

financial year 2024-25. 

 

During the year under review, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment at work place has 

been received by the Company. The following is the status of complaints received and resolved 

during the financial year: 

 

 

S.No. Particulars Numbers 

1.  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints 

received 

NIL 

2.  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints 

disposed off 

NIL 

3.  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints 

pending beyond 90 days. 

NIL 

 

The above reflects the Company's commitment to timely and effective redressal of complaints 

 
 

37. Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961  

 

The Company duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all 

amendment thereto. All eligible women employees have been extended the benefits mandated 

under the Act, including maternity leave medical bonus and nursing breaks. The Company 

remains committed to promoting a supportive and inclusive workplace and ensure that no 

discrimination or adverse action is taken against any employee on account of maternity. 

 

38. Number of Employees as on the closure of financial year 2024-25 

 

 

During the financial year under review, the total number of employees in the Company are as 

follows: 

       

S.No. Particulars Number 

1.  Female 2 

2.  Male 5 

3.  Transgender 0 
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39. General Disclosures 

 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 

were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

 

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company. 

3. There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year. 

4. There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

between the end of financial year and the date of the Report. 

 

 

40. Acknowledgement 

 

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and assistance received 

from the Bankers, Regulatory Bodies, Stakeholders including Financial Institutions, Suppliers, Customers 

and other Business associates who have extended their valuable sustained support and encouragement 

during the year under review. 

 

Your directors take this opportunity to recognize and place on record their gratitude and appreciation for 

the commitment displayed by all executives’ officers and staff at all levels of the Company. We look 

forward for the continued support of every stakeholder in the future. 

 

The Company operates only in a single segment of Business and as such no separate segment reporting is 

required. 

 

  By the order of Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

  

 

           Sd/- 

 

 

Sd/- 

Date:  26th May, 2025 Ananyaa Pandey Sidharth Goyal 

Place: Delhi Director Managing Director 

 DIN:06966851 DIN:02855118 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

38 | P a g e  
 

“ANNEXURE I” 

FORM MR-3 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members, 

HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

S-191/C, 3rd floor, Manak Complex 

School Block, Shakarpur, 

Delhi-110092 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Helpage Finlease Limited (Hereinafter called the 

Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of M/s. Helpage Finlease Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 

hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31st March 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the M/s. Helpage Finlease Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1954 (SCRA) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings: Not applicable to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings as there were no reportable events during the financial year 

under review. 

 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 



 

39 | P a g e  
 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 

2015;  

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; Not applicable to the company during audit period. 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021;  

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable to the company during audit period. 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not 

applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer 

Agent during the financial year under review.  

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

Not applicable to the company during audit period. 
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

applicable to the company during audit period. 
 

. 

2. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

a. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

 

b. The SEBI(LODR) Regulation 2015 entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges  

 

c. Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable 

to non-deposit taking NBFC which are specifically applicable to the Company. 

 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

applicable Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further Report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non -Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Changes 

in the Composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision carried through while the dissenting members view are captured and recorded as 

parts of the minutes.  

 

I further report that as per explanation and representation made by the Management in my opinion 

that there are adequate system and process in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules and 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period the Company, no major action having a bearing on the 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 

etc. above have taken place. 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 Sd/- 

 Divya Rani 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

 ACS No.: A64841 

Date: 26th May, 2025 CP No.: 26426 

Place: Faridabad UDIN: A064841G000436542 

   

* This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A
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Annexure – A 
 

To 

HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

S-191/C, 3rd floor, Manak Complex,  

School Block, Shakarpur, 

Delhi-110092 

 

 

My Secretarial Audit Report for the for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 of even date is 

to be read along with this letter. 

 

Management’s Responsibility: 

 

1. It is responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, 

devise proper systems to ensure compliances with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

 

2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and 

procedure followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

 

3. I have conducted the audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

4. I believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is 

adequate and appropriate for us to provide the basis for our opinion. 

 

5. Whenever required, I have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared, 

documents or Records in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are 

free from misstatement. 

 

6. Whenever required, I have obtained the management’s representation about the 

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

Disclaimer: 

 

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 
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8. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Sd/- 

 Divya Rani 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

 ACS No.: A64841 

Date: 26th May, 2025 CP No.: 26426 

Place: Faridabad  UDIN: A064841G000436542 

 

******* 
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“ANNEXURE-II” 

 

Details of ratio of remuneration of Directors under section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), rules 2014. 

 

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year; 

Name of the Directors Ratio to Median 

Remuneration 

Mr. Sidharth Goyal, Managing Director Nil 

Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan, Non-Executive Independent Director Nil 

Ms. Ananyaa Pandey, Non-Executive Non- Independent 

Director 

Nil 

Mr. Sushil Kumar, Non- executive Independent Director Nil 

 

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, 

Chief Executive officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

Name of the persons % Increase in 

Remuneration 

Mr. Sidharth Goyal, Managing Director Nil 

Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan, Non-Executive Independent Director Nil 

Ms. Ananyaa Pandey, Non-Executive Non- 

Independent Director 

Nil 

Mr. Sushil Kumar, Non- executive Independent Director Nil 

  *Mr. Hemant Chauhan, Company Secretary upto 14th June, 2024 Nil 

*Ms. Darshna Agarwal, Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer w.e.f 17th June, 2024 

29.34% 

 

*Mr. Hemant Chauhan (M. No: A61772) was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company with effect from 16th May, 2024, however he resigned as Company 

Secretary & Compliance officer with effect from 14th June, 2024 
 

*Ms. Darshna Agarwal, appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company w.e.f. 17th June, 2024 
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c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial 

year: Nil 

 

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March 2025: 

Seven (7) 

 

e) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and Justification thereof and point out if there 

are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial Remuneration: Nil 

 

f) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors; 

 

There are no variable components of salary paid in 2024-25 linked with the 

performance of the Company for the said managerial personnel. 

 

g) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

 

The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the 

individual employees and the Company. Through its compensation package, the 

Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high-performance staff. 

The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and performance-

based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business 

performance and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual 

appraisal process. The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration 

policy of the Company. 

 

h) Information pursuant to 197 (12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

Name of top eight employees of the company as on 31.03.2025 are as follows: 
 

S.

N

o. 

Employee 

Name 

Designation Education 

Qualificati

on 

Age Experi

ence 

(in 

Years) 

Date of 

Joining 

Loca

tion 

Remune

ration 

(Per 

Anum) 

Nature of 

Employm

ent 

Last 

Company 

Name 

1. Praveen 

Singh 

Bhadauriya 

 

Manager 

Sales and 

Operations 

B. Com/ 

PGDBO 

33 9 18-10-2021 India  7,56,000 Permanent HDFC Bank 

2. 

 

Amit Verma Sr. 

Accountant 

B. Com 33 10 21-08-2015 India 6,36,000 Permanent 

 

Fresher 

3. Aarti Gupta Sr. 

Accountant 

M.Com 31 11 03-10-2016 India 6,12,000 Permanent Qtronics 

Equipments 

(1) Pvt Ltd. 

4. Deepak Sr. Manager Semi 33 10 20-06-2022 India 5,76,000 Permanent Varun Traders 
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Kumar Accountant Qualified 

5. Darshna 

Agarwal 

Company 

Secretary & 

Compliance 

Officer  

CS 31 3 10-06-2024 India 5,64,000 Permanent Alankit 

Assignment 

Ltd. 

6. Deepak 

Kumar 

Mishra 

Assistant 

Manager 

Sales & 

Operations 

B. A 29 6 12-07-2022 India 4,80,000 Permanent IndusInd 

Bank 

7. Sujeet Kumar 

Mahto 

Business 

Development 

Executive 

B. Tech 28 3 01-04-2024 India 3,48,000 Permanent Demand 

Transport 

Company 

8.  Jayprakash Business 

Development 

Executive 

B.SC 28 3 03-02-2025 India  2,04,000 Probation Paytm 

 

 

Note:  

 

1. Employees mentioned above are neither relative of any director of the Company nor hold 2% 

or more of the paid-up share capital of the Company as per clause (iii) of sub-rule 2 of Rule 5 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

2. During the financial year under review, Company had not employed any such employee who 

was in receipt of salary more than Rupees One Crore Two Lakh annually and Eight Lakh Fifty 

Thousand Monthly. 
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“ANNEXURE- III” 

Form No. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not on an arm’s length basis: 

 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the 

financial year under review which was not an arm’s length basis. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign company 

registration number (FCRN) or Limited Liability Partnership 

number (LLPIN) or Foreign Limited Liability Partnership 

number (FLLPIN) or Permanent Account Number 

(PAN)/Passport for individuals or any other registration number 

Nil 

2 Name (s) of the related party Nil 

3 Nature of the relationship  

4 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

5 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

6 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

Nil 

7 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 

Nil 

8 Date of approval by the Board Nil 

9 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

10 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

Nil 

11 SRN of MGT-14 Nil 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions on an arm’s length 

basis: 

 

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 

for the year ended March 31, 2025, are as follows: 
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  By the order of Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

  

 

 

Sd/- 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Date: 26th May, 2025 Ananyaa Pandey Sidharth Goyal 

Place: Delhi Director Managing Director 

 DIN:06966851 DIN:02855118 

 

******* 
 

Sr. S. No Corporate identity number 

(CIN) or foreign company 

registration number 

(FCRN) or Limited 

Liability Partnership 

number (LLPIN) or 

Foreign Limited Liability 

Partnership number 

(FLLPIN) or Permanent 

Account Number 

(PAN)/Passport for 

individuals or any other 

registration number 

Name (s) of 

the related 

party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature 

of 

contract

s/ 

arrange

ments/ 

transacti

on 

Duratio

n of the 

contract’

s 

arrange

ments/ 

transacti

on 

Salient 

terms of 

the 

contracts 

or 

arrangeme

nts or 

transaction 

including 

the value, 

if any 

Date 

of 

appr

oval 

by 

the 

Boar

d 

Am

oun

t 

paid 

as 

adv

anc

es, 

if 

any 

1. U85100DL2012NPL243502 Sarvsahara 

Foundation 

(Entity 

controlled by 

Promoter) 

Loan 

given 

Ongoing As per the 

agreed terms 

and 

conditions. 

- - 

2. U80904DL2017PTC318370 Himalayan 

Education 

Services 

Private 

Limited 

(Entity 

controlled by 

Promoter) 

Interest 

accrued 

Ongoing As per the 

agreed terms 

and 

conditions. 

- - 

3. ANBPG0167C Chaman 

Goyal 

(Relative of 

KMP) 

Loan 

given 

Ongoing As per the 

agreed terms 

and 

conditions. 

- - 
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“ANNEXURE-IV” 

 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

 Overview: 

 

Helpage Finlease Limited is a non-deposit taking and non-systematically important Non-

Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, listed on Bombay Stock 

Exchange (BSE). 

 

The Company is engaged into the lending business mainly focused for catering the 

financial needs of small and medium enterprise (SME’s) which eventually have a high 

role to play to boost the growth of developing country like India. The Company has also 

obtained registration with four CIC’s (Credit Information Companies) and maintaining 

the data as required. 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) provide an insight into the 

performance of the Company in the previous years, in the current year and its future 

plans besides the risks, uncertainties associated with the Company’s business along with 

the management perception and vision to win over the anomalies of future business 

situations. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) contains 

management’s interpretation of financial performance of the Company more over actual 

results are reflected in the financial statements which should be studied in consonance 

with the Management Perspective. 

 

 Macro-Economic performance of Industry and Outlook: 

 

 NBFCs forms an integral segment of the Indian Financial Sector of the Country; 

complementing the Banks in catering the credit needs of the different sectors of the 

economy. They have emerged as the driving force behind India’s rapid economic growth. 

NBFCs are stronger and more resilient today, and better positioned in almost all 

operationally critical parameters. 

  

During FY 2024–25, the Indian economy remained resilient, recording GDP growth of around 

6.5% despite global headwinds. The prolonged Russia–Ukraine conflict continued to disrupt 

global commodity markets, keeping crude oil and essential metal prices volatile and exerting 

intermittent inflationary pressures worldwide. While advanced economies experienced a 

moderation in growth due to tighter monetary policies, emerging markets like India benefited 

from robust domestic demand, healthy investment activity, and sustained government capital 

expenditure, particularly in infrastructure. 

 

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), global GDP growth stood at approximately 
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3.1% in 2024, with India remaining one of the fastest-growing major economies, significantly 

outpacing the global average. Headline CPI inflation in India moderated to an average of about 

5%, remaining within the RBI’s tolerance band due to easing commodity prices, improved 

supply chain conditions, and effective policy measures. The RBI maintained the policy repo rate 

at 6.50% through the year to anchor inflation expectations, resulting in a stable but relatively 

high-interest rate environment. 

 

The NBFC sector continued to perform strongly, recording nearly 20% year-on-year credit 

growth, substantially higher than the 12% growth of scheduled commercial banks. Retail 

lending, gold loans, MSME financing, and vehicle finance remained the primary growth drivers. 

Asset quality was stable, with gross NPAs averaging 5–6%, supported by prudent underwriting 

standards and robust collection efficiencies. On the regulatory front, the RBI advanced the 

implementation of the Scale-Based Regulation (SBR) framework, issued revised Fraud Risk 

Management directions effective July 2024 to enhance governance and internal controls, and 

expanded the Account Aggregator framework to strengthen data protection and consent-based 

financial information sharing. 

 

Looking ahead to FY 2025–26, the IMF projects India’s GDP growth to be in the range of 6.5–

6.7%, driven by resilient consumption, continued public capital expenditure, and a rebound in 

rural demand. However, uncertainties persist due to ongoing geopolitical tensions, including the 

Russia–Ukraine conflict and related global supply chain risks, which could impact commodity 

prices and inflation dynamics. Credit demand in retail and MSME segments is expected to 

remain robust, particularly in Tier-2 and Tier-3 markets, supported by formalization of the 

economy and rising disposable incomes. Digital transformation, AI-driven underwriting, and 

partnerships with fintech’s are anticipated to further enhance operational efficiency and customer 

reach. While stable domestic interest rates and improved funding access are likely to support 

growth, potential challenges include volatility in global financial markets, shifts in foreign 

capital flows, and climate-related disruptions. Regulatory oversight will remain stringent, with a 

continued emphasis on governance, capital adequacy, and risk management to ensure the long-

term resilience of the NBFC sector. 

 

     Your Company is committed to address these changes strengthen by its potency in market 

position, strong execution capabilities, Committed Team and Excellent Management 

foresight. 
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 Risk Management: 

 

Risk management forms an integral part of our Company’s Business. Being a lending 

institution, there are inherent financial and nonfinancial risks. We have a proper risk 

management framework to identify, assess, monitor and manage various types of internal 

and external risks. The company identifies and monitors risks periodically. 

 

 Performance highlights: 

 

The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under: - 

 Total Revenue from operations increased from Rs. 4,55,13,800/- to Rs. 8,64,615,00/- 

 Net Profit for the year increased from Rs. 87,34,500/- to Rs1,47,53,900. /- 

 Earnings per share (diluted) had increased from Rs. 0.88 to Rs. 1.54. 

Strengths

•Large untapped markets in rural areas and small towns

•Judicious fund management techniques

•Flexible operations & ability to innovate

•Cost advantages

Weakness

•Weak Brand Name and Poor recoveries

•High Resource Cost structure

•Dynamic Political environment

•Negative effects of Economic downturn

Opportunities

•Untapped potential of markets

•Low entry barriers

•Govt. reliefs provided to the NBFC sector amidst the Covid pandemic

•Meeting working capital needs of SME’s sector

Threats

•Competition with banks and peer groups

•Risks associated with liquidity stress

•Deterioration of asset quality and mounting off Non-performing Assets (NPAs).

•Exposure to abnormal industrial risk factors of interest rate volatility, economic cycle and credit risk
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 Segment Wise or Product Wise Performance 

 

 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

 Student 

Education Fee 

Finance 

SME 

Lending 

Student 

Education Fee 

Finance 

SME 

Lending 

Income 35,90,568 8,28,70,922 17,57,915 4,37,55,843 

Grand Total 35,90,568 8,28,70,922 17,57,915 4,37,55,843 

Expenses 14,40,624 6,97,11,205 10,80,966 3,55,86,537 

Grand Total 14,40,624 6,97,11,205 10,80,966 3,55,86,537 

Profit 21,49,944 1,31,59,717 6,76,949 81,69,306 

 

 Human Resources/Industrial Relations: 

 

 The Company recognize that employees are the wealth of an organization which can help 

it in achieving its goals. It continues to lay emphasis on people, its most valuable 

resource and developing industrial relations. In an increasingly competitive market for 

human resources, it seriously focuses on attracting and retaining the right talent. It 

provides an equal opportunity to employees to deliver results. 

 

 Internal Control Systems & Adequacy: 

 

The Company has a disciplined approach to cost and follows prudential norms in every 

sphere of its activities. The Company has established internal control systems for 

ensuring optimum use of resources, safeguarding the assets, avoid errors and frauds and 

systematic control of business activities.  

 

A dedicated concurrent audit team functioning within the Company supported by an 

outsourced concurrent audit team confirms that the activities are in compliance with its 

policies and occurrences of deviations are reported to the Management. The Company 

has further strengthened its internal audit function by investing in domain specialists to 

increase effectiveness of controls. The audit committee of the Board of Directors reviews 

the internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls regularly 

to ensure compliance and suggests measures for improvements. 

 

 Key Financial Ratios: 

 

There have been significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more) in the ratios as compared to 

previous financial year. 
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 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 

 

There has been no change in the preparation of financial statements, a treatment different 

from that prescribed in an Accounting Standard. 

 

 Cautionary Statement: 

 

The statements made in this report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 

estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward-looking statements’ within the 

meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based on 

reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ. 

 

 By the order of Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

  

  

Sd/- 

 Sidharth Goyal 

Date:  26th May, 2025 Managing Director 

Place: Delhi DIN:02855118 

Particulars Current  

Year 

Previous 

Year 

%CHANGE Reason for >25% 

Change  

Current Ratio 1.59 4.25 -62.65 due to decrease in 

current assets 

Debt-Equity Ratio 4.93 2.88 70.94 due to Increase in 

borrowings 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 0.11 0.10 3.79 - 

Return on Equity Ratio 0.09 0.06 57.63 due to Increase in 

Net profit 

Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA - 

Trade Receivables turnover 

ratio 

1.57 0.60 -12.57 - 

Trade payables turnover ratio 4.24 1.63 49.04 due to Increase in 

Finance cost 

Net capital turnover ratio 0.53 0.30 77.28 due to Increase in 

Income 

Net profit ratio 0.17 0.19 -11.08 - 

Return on investment NA NA NA - 

Interest Service Coverage Ratio 1.35 1.54 -12.19 - 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 0.24 0.26 -9.09 - 

Net Profit Margin (%) 0.17 0.19 -11.08 - 
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CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

Compliance Certificate as required under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

To,  

The Board of Directors  

HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

S-191/C, 3rd Floor, Manak Complex, School Block, 

Shakarpur Delhi-110092 

 
 

I, to the best of my knowledge and belief, certify that- 

 

A. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 

2024-25 and that to the best my knowledge and belief:  

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates of the Company’s code of 

conduct. 

 

C. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 

pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, 

deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware 

and the steps I have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

D. I have disclosed, based on my evaluation wherever applicable to the Auditors and the Audit 

Committee that; 

i. there were no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year, and 

iii. there were no instances of significant fraud of which I became aware and the involvement 

therein, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s 

internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

 By the order of Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

  

Sd/- 

 Sidharth Goyal 

Date:  26th May, 2025 Managing Director & CFO 

Place: Delhi DIN:02855118 
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DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

 

Declaration by Managing Director under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of 

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 in respect of compliance with the Company’s Code 

of Conduct  

 

This is to confirm that the members of Board of Directors and Senior Management 

Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of 

Helpage Finlease Limited, as applicable to them, for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March, 2025. 

 

 

  

By the order of Board 

For Helpage Finlease Limited 

  

 

 

 Sd/- 

 Sidharth Goyal 

Date: 26th May, 2025 Managing Director 

Place: Delhi DIN:02855118 

 

 

 

 

******* 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(h)(i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

 

To,  

The Members of 

HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

S-191/C, 3rd Floor, Manak Complex, School Block, 

Shakarpur Delhi-110092 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures, received 

from the Directors of Helpage Finlease Limited having CIN 

L51909DL1982PLC014434 having registered office at S-191/C, 3rd Floor, Manak 

Complex, School Block, Shakarpur New Delhi – 1100092(hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 

10(h)(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and knowledge and according to the 

verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal 

www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such 

other Statutory Authority. 

 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1 Sidharth Goyal 02855118 23/12/2009 

2 Ananyaa Pandey 06966851 02/09/2014 

3 Sushil Kumar 08084573 12/03/2018 

4. Ashwin Dorairajan 06770980 29/09/2021 
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the board 

is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on the basis of our verification. This certificate is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.   

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                   

 Sd/- 

 Divya Rani 

 Practicing Company Secretary 

 M. No.: 64841 

Date:  26th May, 2025 CP No.: 26426 

Place: Faridabad UDIN: A064841G000436511 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of  HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED           

 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Helpage Finlease Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid  Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2025, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes 

in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 43 of the Companies Act, 2013.Our responsibilities order 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 

AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters  

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based 

on our checks and on the basis of information and explanation from the management we have 

determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report does not include 

the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 

we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 

including comprehensive income, and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards {Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design 

,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, Relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 



 

 
 

59 | P a g e  
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

mis statement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion There is kofnot 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Companies 

Act,2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclose in the standalone financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
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deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with the mall 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive 

income, Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 

Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporting 

Annexure2. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial 

position. 
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been advanced or loan or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to any persons or 

entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including 

foreign entities (“intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding party “Ultimate Beneficiaries“ or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary. 
 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered appropriate in the 

circumstances nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under paragraphs (iv)(a) and (b) above contain any material miss-

statement. 
 

v. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 
 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books 

of accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording of Audit trail 

(edit log) facility is applicable to the company with effect from April 1, 2024, and 

accordingly, reporting under rule 11(g) of companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2025. 

 

 
For R C Agarwal & Co.    
Chartered Accountants    
FRN: 003175N 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Pravin Kumar Jha 
(Partner) 
Membership No.: 506375 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN SUB-PARAGRAPH (1) OF PARAGRAPH ON “REPORT 

ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENT SO FOUR REPORTS OF EVEN 

DATE 

 

1. (i)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of property. The company 

has no Plant and Equipment and Intangibles as at year end. 

 

(ii) Title deeds of the land are held in the name of the Company. 

  

(iii) The Company has not revalued property during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(i) (c) & (d) of the 

order are not applicable. 

 

 

(iv) We are informed by the Company that no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition)Act,1988andrules made there under. 

 

2. (i) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

 

3. During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or 

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, 

Limited Liability Partnerships or any other entities 

 

4. The company has not entered into any transactions during the year covered under section 185 of the Act 

and has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. 

 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public nor there are any deemed deposits during 

the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

6. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government. Thus, reporting 

under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

 

7. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 

applicable to it during the year. Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Custom Duty, Investor 

Education &Protection Fund Cess, etc. are not applicable to the company. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no due so income tax, GST etc. 

which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 

8. There were no such transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
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disclosed as income during they are in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act,1961. 

 

9. The Company has not availed any loan or borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

10. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or under public offer nor made any 

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures during the year. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company has been 

noticed or reported during the year / course of audit nor any report filed under section 143(12) of the Act. 

No whistle blower complaints received during the year. 

 

12. The company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xii) of the Order are not 

applied to the company.  

 

13. Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company and the provisions of Section 188 

of the Act have been complied with and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in 

Ind As financial statement as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

 

14. The Company has internal audit system and internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our 

audit. Hence, para 3 (xiv) applicable to the Company and comply with CARO. 

 

15. During the current year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 

persons connected with them. 

 

16. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is a Non- Banking Financial 

Company and registered under section 45- IA of the Reserve Bank of Indian Act, 1934.  

 

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current and previous financial year. 

 

18. There was no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 

(xviii) of the order are not applicable. 

 

19. In our opinion and based on the representation made to us by the management. The Company is capable 

of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 

one year from the balance sheet date.  
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20. The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to corporate social responsibility are not applicable to 

the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xx)of the Order are not applicable. 

 
For R C Agarwal & Co.    
Chartered Accountants    
FRN: 003175N 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Pravin Kumar Jha 
(Partner) 
Membership No.: 506375 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150
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“Annexure 2” 

 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of HELPAGE FINLEASE 

LIMITED for the year ended March 31,2025 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements under 

Cause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of 

HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025, in conjunction with 

our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

1. Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detect on of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013. 

 

2. Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind 

AS financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 

all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
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statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS 

financial statements. 

 

3. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these  financial 

statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 

in reason detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the 

Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

4. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial 

Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these Ind AS 

financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

5. Opinion 

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 

these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as on March 31, 2025 based on the 

internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the 

company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on  
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Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 
For R C Agarwal & Co.    
Chartered Accountants    
FRN: 003175N 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Pravin Kumar Jha 
(Partner) 
Membership No.: 506375 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 

S-191/C, Manak Complex, 3rd Floor, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi - 110092 
CIN: L51909DL1982PLC014434 

       
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025     

(Figures in '100) 
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31st 

March 2025 
As at 31st 
March 2024  

ASSETS 
   

(1) Financials Assets 
   

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 14 431 431 
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) 

above 
14 5,68,992 76,092 

(c) Derivative financial 
instruments 

   

(d) (I) Trade Receivables 13 3,21,305 7,83,442  
(II) Other Receivables 

 
- - 

(e) Loans 12 92,66,624 52,33,978 
(f) Investments 

 
- - 

(g) Other Financials assets 10 5,000 -           
(2) Non-Financial Assets 

   

(a) Inventories 
 

- - 
(b) Current tax Assets (Net) 

 
- - 

(c) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 4 - - 
(d) Investment Property 

 
- - 

(e) Biological assets other than 
bearer plants 

 
- - 

(f) Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

11 86,283 34,254 

(g) Capital work-in-progress 
 

- - 
(h) Intangible assets under 

development 

 
- - 

(i) Goodwill 
 

- - 
(j) Other Intangible assets 

 
- - 

(k) Other financial assets 10 54,299 28,528 
 

Total Assets 
 

1,03,02,934 61,56,724  
LIABILITY AND 
EQUITY 

   

 
LIABILITY 

   

(1) Financial Liabilities 
   

(a) Derivative financial 
instruments 

 
- - 

(b) Payables 
   

 
(I) Trade Payables: 

   
 

(i) total outstanding due to 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 
- - 

 
(i) total outstanding due to 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 
- - 

 
(I) Other Payables: 
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(i) total outstanding due to 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 
- - 

 
(i) total outstanding due to 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small 
enterprises 

9 1,56,804 1,19,166 

(c) Debt Securities 
 

- - 
(d) Borrowings (Other than 

Debt Securities) 
7 43,27,088 34,25,556 

(e) Deposits 
 

- - 
(f) Subordinated Liabilities 

 
- - 

(g) Other Long-Term liabilities 8 37,72,104 9,96,000 
(h) Provisions 5 - - 
(2) Non-Financials Liabilities 

   

(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 6 90,038 32,148 
(b) Provisions 5 3,07,527 49,731 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities 

(Net) 
4 6,881 1,323 

(d) Other non-financials 
liabilities 

 
- - 

     
(3) EQUITY 

   

(a) Equity Share Capital 2 9,94,750 9,94,750 
(b) Other Equity 3 6,47,743 5,38,049       

Total Liabilities and 
Equity 

 
1,03,02,934 61,56,724 

     
Summary of significant accounting 
policies and additional notes. 
  

1 
  

     
The accompanying notes referred above form an integral part of the 
Financial Statements. 
  

 

As per our report of even dated 
attached  

   

         
For R C Agarwal & Co. For HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants 

   

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N 
 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
 
Sd/-           

CA Pravin Kumar Jha 
Partner 

Sidharth 
Goyal 

Ananyaa 
Pandey 

 Darshna 
Agarwal  

Membership No.: 506375  Managing 
Director 

Director Company 
Secretary & 
Compliance 
Officer  

Date: 26thMay 2025 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150 

DIN: 
02855118 

DIN: 
06966851 

M.No.: A73854 
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
S-191/C, Manak Complex, 3rd Floor, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi - 110092 
CIN: L51909DL1982PLC014434      

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS A/C THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST MARCH 2025 
    

(Figures in '100) 

PARTICULARS Note 
No. 

For the 
period 
ending on 
31st March 
2025 

For the 
period ending 
on 31st 
March 2024 

(I) Revenue from operations 
   

(a) Interest Income 15 8,64,615 4,55,138 

(b) Dividend Income 
 

- - 

(c) Rental Income 
 

- - 

(d) Fees and commission Income 
 

- - 

(e) Net gain on fair value changes 
 

- - 

(f) Net gain on de-recognition of financial 
instruments under amortized cost category 

 
- - 

(g) Sale of products (including Excise Duty) 
 

- - 

(h) Other (to be specified) 
 

- -  
Total Revenue from operations 

 
8,64,615 4,55,138      

(II) Other Income 16 - 143      

(III) Total Income (I + II) 
 

8,64,615 4,55,280  
Expenses 

   

(i) Finance Costs 17 5,85,722 2,21,418 

(ii) Fees and commission expense 18 - 413 

(iii) Net loss on fair value changes 
 

- - 

(iv) Net loss on de-recognition of financial 
instruments under amortised cost category 

   

 
Impairment on financial instruments 

 
- - 

(v) Cost of materials consumed 
 

- - 

(vi) Purchases of Stock-in-trade 
 

- - 

(vii) Changes in Inventories of finished goods, 
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 

 
- - 

(viii) Employee Benefits Expenses 19 34,209 29,988 

(ix) Depreciation, amortization and 
impairment 

20 15,165 11,160 

(x) Others expenses 21 22,633 72,501 

(IV) Total Expenses (IV) 
 

6,57,729 3,35,479 

(V) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items 
and tax (III-IV) 

 
2,06,886 1,19,801 

(VI) Exceptional Items: 
   

 
NPA Provision 

 
- - 
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(VII) Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI) 
 

2,06,886 119,801 

(VII) Tax Expense: 
(1) Current Tax 

22 53,790 31,196 

 
(2) Deferred Tax 23 5,558 1,260 

(IX) Profit/(Loss) for the period from 
continuing operations (VII-VIII) 

 
1,47,539 87,345 

(X) Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing 
operations 

 
- - 

(XI) Tax Expense of discontinued operations 
 

- - 

(XII) Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing 
operations (After tax) (X-XI) 

 
- - 

(XIII) Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX-XII) 
 

1,47,539 87,345 

(XIV) Other Comprehensive Income 
 

- - 

(XV) Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period (XIII-XIV) 

 
1.47,539 87,345 

(XV) Earning per equity share (for continuing 
operations) 
-Basic (Rs) 
- Diluted (Rs) 

 
1.54 
1.54 

0.88 
0.88  

     

Summary of significant accounting policies and 
additional notes. 

1 
  

     

The accompanying notes referred above form an integral part of the Financial 
Statements. 

 

As per our report of even dated attached 
   

 
For R C Agarwal & Co. For HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants 

   

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N 
 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
Sd/- 

          
CA Pravin Kumar Jha 
Partner 

Sidharth 
Goyal 

Ananyaa 
Pandey 

 Darshna 
Agarwal 

Membership No.: 506375  Managing 
Director 

Director  Company 
Secretary & 
Compliance 
Officer  

Date: 26th May 2025 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150  

DIN: 02855118 DIN: 06966851 M.No. 
A73854 
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: S-191C, 3rd Floor, Manak Complex, School Block, Shakarpur, New Delhi-
110092 
CIN No. L51909DL1982PLC014434 
      
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025   

  (Figures in'100) 
PARTICULARS For the period 

ending on 31st 
March 2025 

For the period 
ending on 31st 
March 2024 

A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities     
  Net Profit before tax and extraordinary 

items (as per Statement of Profit and Loss) 
2,06,886 1,19,801 

  Adjustments for non-Cash/ Non-trade 
items: 

  

  Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 15,165 11,160 
  Finance Cost 5,85,722 2,21,418 
  Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 

  

  Operating profits before Working 
Capital Changes Adjusted For: 

  

  (Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 4,62,136 (37,090) 
  Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 37,637 (33,694) 
  Increase / (Decrease) in other current 

liabilities 
2,77,841 8,270 

  (Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (30,771) 526 
  Cash generated from Operations 7,46,843 (61,988) 
  Income Tax (Paid) / Refund (53,790) (31,196) 
  Net Cash flow from Operating 

Activities(A) 
15,00,827 2,59,195 

    
  

B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
  

  Purchase of tangible assets (67,194) - 
  Cash advances and loans made to other 

parties 
(40,32,646) (18,09,975) 

  Cash advances and loans received back - - 
  Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (40,99,840) (18,09,975) 
    

  

C.  Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
  

  Finance Cost (5,85,722) (2,21,418) 
  Increase in / (Repayment) of Long-term 

borrowings 
36,77,636 17,49,956 

  Increase / (Decrease) in share capital - - 
  Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash - - 
  Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 30,91,914 15,28,539 
    

  

D.  Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash 
Equivalents(A+B+C) 

4,92,901 (22,242) 

E.  Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of 
period 

76,522 98,764 

F.  Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 5,69,423 76,522 
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G.  Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash 
Equivalents(F-E) 

4,92,901 (22,242) 

  
  

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and 
additional notes. 

1 
 

   
The accompanying notes referred above form an 
integral part of the Financial Statements. 
  

  
 

As per our report of even dated attached   
 

 
 

  
 

For R C Agarwal & Co. For Helpage Finlease Limited 
Chartered Accountants   

 

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N                                       
 

 
                                             Sd/-   

  Sidharth Goyal 
Sd/- 
CA Pravin Kumar Jha 

  (Managing Director) 
DIN: 02855118 

Partner     
Membership No.: 506375   Sd/-   

  Ananyaa Pandey   
 (Director)  

DIN: 06966851  
Date: 26th May 2025     
Place: New Delhi   Sd/- 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150   Darshna Agarwal   

 
  Company Secretary 
&     Compliance 
Officer 
M. No. A73854 
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: S-191C, 3rd Floor, Manak Complex, School Block, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092 

CIN No. L51909DL1982PLC014434  
Statement of Change in Equity 

 
(Figures in '100) 

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 9,94,750 9,94,750 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 9,94,750 9,94,750 
  

  
  

Other Equity 
  

(Figures in '100)  
Particulars Retained 

Earning 
Statutory Reserve Securities Premium 

Account 
  Balance as at 1st April 2024 2,88,563 76,735 1,72,750.00 

  Profit during the year  1,47,539 -      - 

  transfer to statutory reserve fund in term 
of section 45(IC) of RBI Act, 1934 

(30,615) 
(30,615) 

- 

  transfer to provision for standard assets 
in term of section 45(IC) of RBI Act, 
1934 

(37,844) 

-     

- 

  Balance as at 31st March 2025 3,67,642 1,07,350 1,72,750.00      

Summary of significant accounting policies 
and additional notes. 

1 
  

     

The accompanying notes referred above form an integral part 
of the Financial Statements. 

 

As per our report of even dated attached  
   

    
For R C Agarwal & Co. For HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants 

   

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
Sd/- 

 
 
 Sd/-      

CA Pravin Kumar Jha 
Partner 

Sidharth Goyal Ananyaa Pandey 
Darshna Agarwal 

Membership No.: 506375  Managing 
Director 

Director  Company Secretary 
&  
Compliance Officer  

Date: 26th May 2025 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150  

DIN: 02855118 DIN: 06966851 
M.No. A73854 
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ANNEXURE 'A' 
 
Details of Sundry Creditors 

 TRADE PAYABLE AGEING SCHEDULE  
    Outstanding for following periods from due date of  

S. No. Particulars Payment as at 31.03.2025  

  
  

Less than 1 
years 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 
years 

Total 
 

i MSME - - - - -  
ii Others - - - - -  
  Other payable 1,56,804    1,56,804  
iii Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -  
iv Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -  
  Grand Total 1,56,804   - 1,56,804  
        
        
    Outstanding for following periods from due date of  
S. No. Particulars Payment as at 31.03.2024  

  
  

Less than 1 
years 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 
years 

Total 
 

i MSME - - - - -  
ii Others - - - - -  
 other payable 1,19,166    1,19,166  
iii Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -  
iv Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -  
 Grand Total 1,19,166 - - - 1,19,166  

 
 The disclosure under section 22 of MSMED Act 2006 under the Chapter on Delayed Payments to Micro and Small 

Enterprises is as under: 
  

  As At 31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024 
Particulars in Hundred in Hundred 
a. Principal amount and interest due there on remaining unpaid to 
any supplier: 

0.00 0.00 

Name of party:   

Principal    

Interest due    

b. Interest paid by buyer u/s 16 of MSMED Act 2006: - - 
Name of the party   

c. Amount of interest due and payable while principal is paid by the 
supplier 

- - 

Name of the party   

d. The amount of interest accrued and remained unpaid at the end of 
accounting year 

- - 

Name of the party   

e. The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until 

- - 

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance 
as a deductible expenditure u/s 23: 
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Name of the party: 
  

 
Total - - 

 
ANNEXURE 'B' 
 
NON-CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE 
 

S. 
No. 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
 

  
Payment as at 31.03.2025 

 
  

Less than 
6 months 

6 month-
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Total 

i Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered 
Good 

- - - - - - 

ii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

iii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Good 

- - - - - - 

v Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

vi Disputed Trade Receivables 
— credit impaired 

- - - - - - 

 
Grand Total - - - - - -         

S. 
No. 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
 

  
Payment as at 31.03.2024 

 
  

Less than 
6 months 

6 month-
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Total 

i Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered 
Good 

- - - - - - 

ii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered 
Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

iii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Good 

- - - - - - 

v Disputed Trade Receivables- 
Considered Doubtful 

- - - - - - 
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vi Disputed Trade Receivables 
— credit impaired 

- - - - - - 

 
Grand Total - - - - - - 

 
 
 

Trade receivables: 
   

Amt (In 
Hundred) 

Amt (In 
Hundred) 

Receivable outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
became due for payment: 

  

a) Secured considered good 
   

- - 
b) Unsecured considered good 

   
- - 

c) Doubtful 
   

- -      
- - 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 
   

- -      
- - 

Other receivables: 
     

a) Secured considered good 
   

- - 
b) Unsecured considered good 

     
 

Agro Auto 
Componentes P Ltd 

   
- - 

c) Doubtful 
   

- -      
- - 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 
   

- -   
- 

  
- - 

Total 
    

- - 
 
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE 
 

S. No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
    Payment as at 31.03.2025   

Less than 6 
months 

6 month-
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More 
than 3 
years 

Total 

i Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Good 

3,21,305 - - - - 3,21,305 

ii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

iii Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Good 

- - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

  Grand Total 3,21,305 - - - - 3,21,305 
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S. 
No
. 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

    Payment as at 31.03.2024 
    Less than 6 

months 
6 month-
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Total 

i Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Good 

7,83,442 - - - - 7,83,442 

ii Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered 
Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

iii Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered Good 

- - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 
Considered 
Doubtful 

- - - - - - 

  Grand Total 7,83,442 - - - - 7,83,442 
 
 
For R C Agarwal & Co. 

 
 
  

 
 
For Helpage Finlease Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
   

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N 
   

    

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
CA Pravin Kumar Jha  Sidharth Goyal  Ananyaa Pandey Darshna Agarwal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 506375 

Managing 
Director 
DIN: 02855118 

Director 
DIN: 06966851 

Company Secretary 
& Compliance 
Officer   

  M. No. A73854 
Date: 26th May 2025 

   

Place: New Delhi 
   

UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150  
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Additional Regulatory Requirements 
 
1) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company - NOT APPLICABLE  

   
Relevant 
line item in 
the 
Balance 
sheet 

Descript
ion of 
item of 
property 

Gross 
carryin
g value 

Title 
deeds 
held 
in the 
name 
of 

Whether title deed 
holder is a 
promoter, director 
or relative# of 
promoter/director 
or employee of 
promoter/director 

Propert
y held 
since 
which 
date 

Reason 
for not 
being 
held in 
the 
name of 
the 
compan
y 

1 Property, plant 
and equipment 

Land           

Building           

2 Investment 
Property 

Land           

Building           
3 PPE Retired 

from Active 
use and held 
for disposal 

Land 
          

Building           

4 Others             
 
 
2) Where the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, the company shall disclose as to whether the 

revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered 
Valuer and Valuation) Rules 2017 - NOT APPLICABLE 
 

3) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) – NOT APPLICABLE 
 

 

For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule is as under: 
 

CWIP aging schedule 
 CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of 
   Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total 

 Projects in Progress - - - - - 
 Projects temporarily 

Suspended 
- - - - - 

             
 If capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its 

original plan 

 

 
      

 CWIP To be Completed in 
   Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 
Years 

2-3 Years More than 3 
years 

Tot
al 
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 Project 1  - - - - - 
 Project 2      

 
4) Intangible assets under development - NOT APPLICABLE   

Intangible Assets Under 
Development 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

 
  Less than 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

years 
Total 

 
Project 1  - - - - -  
Project 2 - - - - - 

 
5) Details of Benami Property held - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
6) Details Where the Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security 

of current assets, it shall disclose the following: -  
 Whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial 

institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. If not, summary of reconciliation and reasons of material 
discrepancies– THIS CLAUSE IS NOT APPLICABLE 

 
7) Willful Defaulter - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
8) Relationship with Struck off Companies - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
9) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies - NOT 

APPLICABLE  
  

10) Compliance with number of layers of companies - NOT APPLICABLE  
 
11) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
12) Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium: - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
13) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
14) Undisclosed income - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
15) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) - NOT APPLICABLE 
 
16)  Ratios to be calculated 
 

Particulars Current  
Year 

Previous 
Year 

% 
CHANGE 

Reason for >25% 
Change  

Current Ratio 1.59 4.25  -62.65 due to Decrease in current 
assets 

Debt-Equity Ratio 4.93 2.88  70.94 due to Increase in 
borrowings 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 0.11 0.10  3.79 - 

Return on Equity Ratio 0.09 0.06 57.63 due to Increase in Net 
profit 

Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA - 
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Trade Receivables turnover ratio 1.57 0.60 -12.57 - 

Trade payables turnover ratio 4.24 1.63 49.04 due to Increase in Finance 
Cost 

Net capital turnover ratio 0.53 0.30 77.28 due to Increase in Income 

Net profit ratio 0.17 0.19 -11.80 - 

Return on investment NA NA NA - 

Interest Service Coverage Ratio 1.35 1.54 -12.19 - 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 0.24 0.26 -9.09 - 

Net Profit Margin (%) 0.17 0.19 -11.08 - 

 
   The above ratios have been reported by using the following formulae: 
 

a. Current ratio Current assets 
Current liabilities 

b. Debt-equity ratio Total debts 
Shareholder's equity 

c. Debt service coverage ratio EBITDA 
Total debts and interest payable during the year 

d. Return on equity ratio Net profit after tax 
Shareholder's equity 

e. Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold 
Average inventory 

f. Trade receivable turnover ratio Sales 
Average trade debtors 

g. Trade payable turnover ratio Total supply purchases 
Average trade creditors 

h. Net capital turnover ratio Total sales 
Average trade creditors 

i. Net profit ratio Net profit after tax 
Total revenue 

j. Return on investment Net profit after tax 
Cost of investment 

 
For R C Agarwal & Co. 

 
For Helpage Finlease Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
   

Firm Reg. No.: 003175N 
   

    
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
CA Pravin Kumar Jha 
Partner 

 Sidharth Goyal  Ananyaa Pandey Darshna Agarwal 

Membership No.: 506375 Managing 
Director 
DIN: 02855118 

Director 
DIN: 06966851 

Company Secretary 
& Compliance 
Officer 

Date: 26th May 2025 
  

M. No. A73854 
Place: New Delhi 

   

UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150 
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HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
S-191/C, Manak Complex, 3rd Floor, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi – 110092 
CIN: L51909DL1982PLC014434  
 

 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES &ADDITIONAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Schedule forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025) 
             
Note-1 
 
A. Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Basis of Accounting: - 

The financial Statement have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principle to comply in all material respect with the notified Ind Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’) as 
amended, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) as applicable 
to a Non – Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’). 

2. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. 
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and 
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 
 

3. Revenue Recognition: - 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized as prescribed in Indian 
Accounting Standards on accrual basis. Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable 
respectively are accounted for on accrual basis. 

Interest Income:  

In respect of loan agreements, the income is accrued by applying the impact rate rin the transaction 
on declining balance on the amount financed for the period of the agreement. 

 

4. Property, Plant &Equipment: - 

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangible assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition 
including taxes, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the 
concerned assets attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition and intended use less 
accumulated depreciation till date. 

Company has adopted cost model for all class of items of Property Plant and Equipment. 
 

5. Depreciation: -      

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in schedule II 
to the Companies act, 2013. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the basis of SLM Method.  
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6. Investments: - 

Investments are stated at cost. No investment held by the company as on 31.03.2025.  
 

7. Inventories: - 

Inventories are valued as under: - 

1. Inventories :  Lower of cost or net realizable value 

2. Scrap :  At net realizable value. 

No inventory held by the company as on 31.03.2025. 
 

8. Retirement Benefits: - 

The retirement benefits are accounted for as and when liability becomes due for payment. No 
provision for terminal benefit is required. 

9. Taxes on Income: - 

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting 
year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax expense comprises current taxes and deferred 
taxes. Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the 
year. 

There is timing difference in book profit and taxable profit of the company and hence, deferred tax 
liability has been accounted for as per Indian Accounting Standards. 
 

10. Provisions for Assets 

The company makes provisions for standard and Non-performing Assets as per the Non-Banking 
Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting of Holding Companies prudential Norms Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2007, as amended from time to time. The company also makes additional provisions 
towards loan assets, to the extent considered necessary, based on the management’s best estimate. 

Loan assets, if any, which as per the management are not likely to be recovered are considered as bad 
debts and written off. 
 

11. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: - (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. 

 Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for: - 

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control 
of the company or 

(ii) Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 
be made.  

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the recognition 
of the income that may never be realized. 

12. Earnings Per Share 
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted averages number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are 
adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares. 
 

General: 

Except wherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted accounting 
principles and have been consistently applied. 

 
(B) Additional Notes on Financial Statements: 
 

1. The SSI status of the creditors is not known to the Company; hence the information is not given. 
 

2. Salaries include director’s remuneration on account of salary Rs. NIL /- (Previous Year Rs. NIL /-) 
 

3. Trade receivables, Trade payables, Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans have been taken at their 
book value subject to confirmation and reconciliation. 

 

4. Payments to Auditors: 

Auditors Remuneration 2024-2025 2023-2024 

Audit Fees 41,300 /- 41,300 /- 

Tax Audit Fees NIL NIL 

Company Law Matters NIL NIL 

GST NIL NIL 

Total 41,300 /- 41,300 /- 

 
5. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any security 

other than the personal guarantee of persons. 
 

6. Related Party disclosure as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors: 
 

(A) Related Parties and their Relationship 
 
(I) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

1. Mr. Sidharth Goyal 
2. Ms. Ananyaa Pandey 
3. Mr. Ashwin Dorairajan 
4. Mr. Sushil Kumar 
5. Mr. Hemant Chauhan (resigned w.e.f 14.06.2024) 

(Ms. Darshna Agarwal has been appointed as on 17.06.2024)         

 
(II) Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMP)  

1. Hemant Kumar Goyal  
2. Chaman Goyal 
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(III) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management personnel or their relatives 
(KMP) 

1. Jeen Social Development Foundation 
2. Jeen Universal Foundation 
3. Sarvashara Foundation 
4. Think Tank InfoTech Private Limited 
5. Himalayan Education Services Private Limited  

 
Transactions with Related parties       (Figure in Rupees) 
 Transactions 

 
 Current Year Previous year 

Particulars 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced by 

KMPs & 
Relative of 

KMPs 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced by 

KMPs 

Advance Paid NIL             NIL NIL 12,00,000 /- 
Repayment received NIL NIL NIL 1,45,00,000/- 

Deposit Received NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Deposit Repaid NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Interest Income (Net of TDS) NIL 18,52,875 /- NIL 20,08,875 /- 

Interest Expense NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Remuneration Paid 4,01,755/- NIL 3,10,597/- NIL 

Purchase NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Rent Paid  NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Other Payment NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Job Charges NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
 Outstanding Balances* 

 Current Year Previous year 

Particulars 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced by 

KMPs 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced by 

KMPs 
Loans Payable NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Loans Receivable NIL 2,49,00,000 /- NIL 2,64,00,000 /- 
Interest Receivable NIL 99,78,775 /- NIL 81,25,900 /- 

 This is the outstanding balance amount as on 31.03.2025 and comparative balance amount as on 
31.03.2024 in the books of accounts of the company. 
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7. % of imported & indigenous raw material & consumables 

Particulars 2025 2024 
 % Amount % Amount 

Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Indigenous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 
 
8. Value of Imports 

Raw Material Nil Nil 
Finished Goods Nil Nil 

 
9. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil 
 
10. Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil 
 
11. Previous periods/year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and re-classified wherever necessary 

to confirm to current periods classification. 
 
As per our report of even dated attached 
 
For R C Agarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 003175N 
 
 
 
 
 

For M/s HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
CA Pravin Kumar Jha Sidharth Goyal Ananyaa Pandey Darshna Agarwal 
Partner 
Membership No. 506375 

Managing 
Director 
DIN: 02855118 

Director 
DIN: 06966851 

Company Secretary 
& Compliance 
officer 
M. No. A73854 

Place: New Delhi    
Date: 26th May 2025    
UDIN: 25506375BMJJOD4150 



HELPAGE FINLEASE LIMITED 
S-191/C, Manak Complex, 3rd Floor, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-
110092           

 

CIN: L51909DL1982PLC014434 
AABCH1021L 
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Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025. 
 
The previous year figures have been re-grouped / re-classified, wherever necessary to confirm to the 
current year presentation. 
 
 
Note No. 2 Equity Share Capital  in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Authorised:   
11000000 (31/03/2024:11000000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 11,00,000.00 11,00,000.00 
Issued:   
9947500 (31/03/2024:9947500) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 9,94,750.00 9,94,750.00 
Subscribed and paid-up:   
9947500 (31/03/2024:9947500) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 
 

9,94,750.00 9,94,750.00 

Total 9,94,750.00 9,94,750.00 
 
 
Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 
 
(a) Equity shares  in Hundred 
 As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

 No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 
At the beginning of the period 99,47,500 9,94,750.00 99,47,500 9,94,750.00 
Issued during the Period - - - - 
Redeemed or bought back during the period - - - - 
Outstanding at end of the period 99,47,500 9,94,750.00 99,47,500 9,94,750.00 
 
 
(b) Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares 
 
Equity shares 
The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote 
per share held. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company 
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
 
 
(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 
 

Type of Share Name of Shareholders 
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding 
Equity [NV: 10.00] Hemant Kumar Goyal 14,79,487 14.87 14,79,487 14.87 
Equity [NV: 10.00] Kusum Goyal 5,00,000 5.03 5,00,000 5.03 
Equity [NV: 10.00] Sidharth Goyal 5,15,000 5.18 5,15,000 5.18 
Equity [NV: 10.00] G2 Consultants Private Limited 12,00,000 12.06 12,00,000 12.06 

Equity [NV: 10.00] 
Aloukik Real Estate and Builders 
Private Limited 

12,00,000 12.06 12,00,000 12.06 

Equity [NV: 10.00 Jaanki Devi Eduskills Private Limited 6,48,164 6.52 6,48,164 6.52 
      
Equity [NV: 10.00] S S Energy Ventures Private Limited 8,50,000 8.54 8,50,000 8.54 
Equity [NV: 10.00] Singhal Technologies Private Limited 7,00,000 7.04 7,00,000 7.04 
Equity [NV: 10.00] Singhania Capital Private Limited 16,09,203 16.17 16,09,203 16.17 

 Total: 87,01,854 87.47 87,01,854 87.47 
 
 
 
Note No. 3 Other Equity 

 
 

 in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
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Reserves &Surplus   
  Opening Balance 2,88,563.00 2,20,597.00 
  Add: Provision for Income Tax Reversal - - 
  Add: Profit for the year 1,47,539.00 87,345.00 
  Less: Transfer to statutory reserve (Reserve u/s 45(IC) (30,615.00) (17,721.00) 
  Less: Transfer to Provision for Standard Assets (37,844.00) (1,658.00) 
  Closing Balance 3,67,643.00 2,88,563.00 

   
  Securities premium   
  Opening Balance 1,72,750.00 1,72,750.00 
  Add: Addition during the year - - 
Less: Deletion during the year - - 
  Closing Balance 1,72,750.00 1,72,750.00 

   
  Statutory Reserves (Reserve u/s 45(IC)   
  Opening Balance 76,735.00 59,014.00 
  Add: Addition during the year 30,615.00 17,721.00 
Less: Deletion during the year - - 
  Closing Balance 1,07,350.00 76,735.00 
  Balance carried to balance sheet 6,47,743.00 5,38,048.00 
 
 
Note No. 4 Deferred Tax Liability  in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Deferred tax liability   
Deferred Tax liability 6,881.00 1,323.00 
Gross deferred tax liability 6,881.00 1,323.00 
   
Deferred tax assets   
Deferred Tax Asset - - 
   
Gross deferred tax asset - - 
Net deferred tax assets - - 
Net deferred tax liability 6,811.00 1,323.00 
 
 
 
Note No. 5 Provisions  in Hundred 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
 Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term Total 

Other provisions       
Financials:       
Salary Payable - 9,987.00 9,987.00 - 9,141.00 9,141.00 
Expenses Payable  2,41,357.00 2,41,357.00  22,251.00 22,251.00 
  2,51,344.00 2,51,344.00  31,392.00 31,392.00 
Non-Financials:       
Provision for Standard Assets - 56,183.00 56,183.00 - 18,339.00 18,339.00 
 - 56,183.00 56,183.00 - 18,339.00 18,339.00 
Total - 3,07,527.00 3,07,527.00 - 49,731.00 49,731.00 
 
Note No. 6 Current Tax Liabilities  in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Others payables   
Provision for Current Tax 81,363.00 27,574.00 
TDS Payable 8,675.00 4,575.00 
 90,038.00 32,149.00 
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Total 90,038.00 32,149.00 
 
 
Note No. 7 Borrowings  in Hundred 
 As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

Particulars Non-Current 
Current 

Maturities 
Total Non-Current 

Current 
Maturities 

Total 

Term Loan - From banks       
 Secured Loan from bank - 
Car loan unsecured 

- - - - - - 

 - - - - - - 
Other Loans and advances       
 Unsecured loan 43,27,088.00 - 43,27,088.00 34,25,556.00 - 34,25,556.00 
 43,27,088.00 - 43,27,088.00 34,25,556.00 - 34,25,556.00 
       
The Above Amount 
Includes 

      

 Unsecured Borrowings 43,27,088.00 - 43,27,088.00 34,25,556.00 - 34,25,556.00 
Net Amount 43,27,088.00 - 43,27,088.00 34,25,556.00 - 34,25,556.00 
 
 
 
Note No. 8 Other Long-Term liabilities 

 
 

 in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Other Long-Term liabilities   
Other Long-Term liabilities 37,72,104.00 9,96,000.00 
 37,72,104.00 9,96,000.00 

Total 37,72,104.00 9,96,000.00 
 
 
Note No. 9 Other Payables 

 
 

 in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Others payables   
Interest Payable 1,56,804.00 1,19,166.00 
 1,56,804.00 1,19,166.00 

Total 1,56,804.00 1,19,166.00 
 
 
 
Note No. 10 Other Non-Financial Assets & Other Financial Assets  in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Other Financial Assets   
Income Tax Refund Receivable FY 2020-21 - - 
TDS Receivable 53,676.00 27,527.00 
Advance Paid 5,000.00 1,000.00 
TCS 623.00 - 
Total 59,299.00 28,527.00 
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Note No. 11 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as at 31st March 2025    in Hundred    
 Assets  Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization Net Block 

  

Usefu
l Life 

(In 
Years

) 

Balance as 
at   

1st April 
2024 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Addition on 
account of 
business 

acquisition 

Deletion 
during the 

year 

Balance as 
at   

31st March 
2025 

Balance as 
at   

1st April 
2024 

Provided 
during the 

year 

Deletion / 
adjustments 
during the 

year 

Balance as 
at   

31st March 
2025 

Balance as 
at   

31st March 
2025 

Balance as 
at   

31st March 
2024 

A Tangible assets             
 Own Assets             

 Computers 3.00 2,757.00 - - - 2,757.00 2,757.00 - - 2,757.00 - - 
 Motor Car 8.00 90,016.00 67194.00 - - 1,57,210.00 56,034.00 14,893.00 - 70,927.00 86,283.00 33,982.00 
 Furniture 10.00 3,361.00 - - - 3,361.00 3,089.00 272.00 - 3,361.00 - 272.00 
 Total (A)  96,134.00 67,194.00 - - 1,63,328.00 61,880.00 15,165.00 - 77,045.00 86,283.00 34,254.00 
 P.Y Total  96,134.00 - - - 96,134.00 50,720.00 11,160.00 - 61,880.00 34,254.00 45,414.00 

 
 
General Notes: 
1. No depreciation if remaining useful life is negative or zero. 
2. Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis in case assets is purchased/sold during current F.Y. 
3. If above assets is used for any time during the year for double shift, the depreciation will increase by 50% for that period and in case of the triple shift the depreciation shall be calculated on 

the basis of 100% for that period. 
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Note No. 12 Loans and advances  in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
 Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term 
Loans and advances to related parties     
Unsecured, considered good 2,64,000.00 - 2,64,000.00 - 
 2,64,000.00 - 2,64,000.00 - 
Other loans and advances     
Unsecured, considered good 90,02,625.00 - 49,69,978.00 - 
 90,02,625.00 - 49,69,978.00 - 
Total 92,66,625.00 - 52,33,978.00 - 
 
 
Note No. 13 Trade Receivables 

 
 in Hundred 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Other Assets   
Interest Accrued but not received 3,21,305.00 7,83,442.00 
Total 3,21,305.00 7,83,442.00 
 
 
Note No. 14 Cash and cash equivalents 

 
 

 in Hundred 
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 
Balance with banks   
Cash at bank 5,68,992.00 76,092.00 
Total 5,68,992.00 76,092.00 
Cash in hand   
Cash in hand 431.00 431.00 
Total 431.00 431.00 
Total 5,69,423.00 76,523.00 
 
 
Note No. 15 Interest Income (Revenue from operations)  in Hundred 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Interest Income   
Interest Income on loans and advances 8,64,615.00 4,55,138.00 
 8,64,615.00 4,55,138.00 

Net revenue from operations 8,64,615.00 4,55,138.00 
 
Note No. 16 Other income  in Hundred 
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Other non-operating income   
Interest on Income Tax refund - 143.00 
 - 143.00 

Total - 143.00 
 
 
Note No. 17 Finance costs 

 
 in Hundred 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Interest   
Interest on loans from others 5,85,722.00 2,21,418.00 
   
 5,85,722.00 2,21,418.00 

Total 5,85,722.00 2,21,418.00 
 
Note No. 18 Commission expenses 

 
 in Hundred 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Fees and commission expenses   
Commission expenses - 413.00 
 - 413.00 

Total - 413.00 
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Note No. 19 Employee benefit expenses   
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Salaries and Wages   
Salary and wages 34,209.00 29,988.00 
Total 34,209.00 29,988.00 
 
 
Note No. 20 Depreciation and amortization expenses  in Hundred 
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Depreciation on tangible assets 15,165.00 11,160.00 
Total 15,165.00 11,160.00 
 

 
Note No. 21 Other expenses  in Hundred 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Advertising expenses 309.00 273.00 

AGM Expenses 295.00 295.00 

Annual custody fees 325.00 266.00 

Annual issuer fees 266.00 266.00 

Annual Maintenance Charge 12.00 - 

Audit fees 413.00 413.00 

Bank charges 369.00 62.00 

Legal Expenses 2,743.00 1,243.00 

Electricity expenses 1,166.00 1,283.00 

E-voting charges 31.00 107.00 

Insurance expenses 1,492.00 995.00 

Software Development Expenses 153.00 - 

Interest and Penalty - 2.00 

Listing Expenses 3,835.00 3,835.00 

MCA Expenses 24.00 66.00 

Maintenance charges of members 142.00 142.00 

Membership fees 59.00 59.00 

Bad Debt - 50,000.00 

Printing and Stationery Expenses 24.00 15.00 
Professional expenses 5,851.00 - 

Repair and maintenance expense 72.00 157.00 

Travelling Expenses 34.00 188.00 

NIM Expenses - 6,330.00 

Courier Expenses 18.00 4.00 

Consultancy Expenses 5,000.00 6,500.00 

Total 22,633.00 72,501.00 
 
Note No. 22 Current tax  in Hundred 
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Current tax pertaining to current year 53,790.00 31,196.00 
Total 53,790.00 31,196.00 
 
 
Note No. 23 Deferred tax  in Hundred 
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Deferred Tax 5,558.00 1,260.00 
Total 5,558.00 1,260.00 
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	NOTICE OF 43rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
	ORDINARY BUSINESS:
	1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
	EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
	Item No. 3:
	Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 2024, has amended Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations. As per the said amendment ...
	Pursuant to the above requirement, the Board at its meeting held on 26th May 2025, considering the experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to the Members of the Company the appointment of “CS Divya...
	After evaluating all proposals and considering various factors such as independence, industry experience, technical skills, geographical presence, audit team, audit quality reports, etc., CS Divya Rani has been recommended to be appointed as the Secre...
	There is no material change in the terms of the remuneration paid to the Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The remuneration will be mutually decided between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditor.
	The Company has received written consent from CS Divya Rani and a certificate that she satisfies the qualification criteria provided under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and that the ap...
	The individual has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under the Act. She has further confirmed that she is eligible for the proposed appointment as Secretarial Auditor of...
	None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.
	Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is sought for appointment of CS Divya Rani, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 years commencing from 1st April 2025.
	The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members.
	Details of Director Seeking Appointment / Re-Appointment at the 43rd Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting a...
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	i. Retirement of Director by Rotation
	Brief details and other details as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India for re appointment of Ms. Ananyaa Pandey, Non-Executive Non-Independent...
	ii. Statement on declaration given by Independent Directors
	iii. Performance evaluation at Board
	iv. Policies on appointment of Directors and Remuneration
	v. Meetings of the Board
	The 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 23rd July, 2024.
	B. Key Managerial Personnel
	Opinion
	Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
	The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential c...
	2. Auditors’ Responsibility
	A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external...
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